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June 23, 2023 

Via Electronic Filing  

Ms. Rosemary Chiavetta, Secretary 
Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission 
Commonwealth Keystone Building, 2nd Floor 
400 North Street 
Harrisburg, PA  17120 
 
 
Re: Duquesne Light Company - Default Service Plan IX 
 Letter re Solar Power Purchase Agreement 
 Docket No. P-2020-3019522 
 
 
Dear Secretary Chiavetta: 
 
 Duquesne Light Company (“Duquesne Light” or the “Company”) is filing this letter to 
provide an update with respect to the Solar Power Purchase Agreement (“PPA”) between the 
Company and Pine Gate Renewables, LLC (“Pine Gate”), which the Company filed at the above-
captioned docket on April 1, 2022, and which the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission’s 
(“Commission”) approved by Secretarial Letter issued May 20, 2022. 
 
 The PPA, which was marked Confidential, contained provisions governing the 
circumstances under which the PPA would terminate. Relevant to this letter, PPA Section 20.3 
provided for the parties to enter into renegotiations where certain project development milestones 
were not met, and to terminate the PPA where such renegotiations did not succeed. On December 
31, 2022, Pine Gate failed to meet a project development milestone that triggered PPA Section 
20.3. The parties attempted to renegotiate the PPA, but these negotiations were not successful, and 
Pine Gate subsequently terminated the PPA.   
 
 The Company is developing a new Request for Proposals (“RFP”) for one or more solar 
power purchase agreements to replace the PPA with Pine Gate. The Company currently anticipates 
issuing that RFP as soon as June of 2023. To the extent the Company procures new power purchase 
agreements through the RFP, it will file them for Commission review in accordance with 
Commission’s Order entered January 14, 2021, at this docket. 
 
 
  
  



 

 

Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions. 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 

Michael Zimmerman 
Manager & Assistant General Counsel, 
Regulatory Law 

 
Enclosures 
Cc: Certificate of Service 
 Joe Sherrick, TUS (josherrick@pa.gov) 



 
 

 
 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 
 

 I hereby certify that a true and correct copy of the foregoing has been served upon the 
following persons, in the manner indicated, in accordance with the requirements of 52 Pa. Code 
§ 1.54 (relating to service by a participant): 
 

     ELECTRONIC MAIL 
 
Bureau of Investigation & Enforcement 
Scott B. Granger 
Richard Kanaskie 
Commonwealth Keystone Building 
400 North Street, 2nd Floor West 
PO Box 3265 
Harrisburg, PA 17105-3265 
sgranger@pa.gov 
rkanaskie@pa.gov 
 

Office of Small Business Advocate 
Sharon Webb 
Steve Gray 
555 Walnut Street, 1st Floor 
Harrisburg, PA 17101 
swebb@pa.gov 
sgray@pa.gov 
 
 

Office of Consumer Advocate 
David T. Evrard 
Aron J. Beatty 
555 Walnut Street 
Forum Place, 5th Floor 
Harrisburg, PA 17101-1923 
DEvrard@paoca.org 
ABeatty@paoca.org 
 
Norris McLaughlin, P.A. 
John F. Lushis, Jr.  
515 W. Hamilton Street 
Suite 502 
Allentown, PA 18101 
jlushis@norris-law.com 
jlaskey@norris-law.com 
On behalf of 
Calpine Retail Holdings, LLC 

Pennsylvania Utility Law Project 
Elizabeth R. Marx 
John Sweet 
Ria Pereira 
118 Locust Street  
Harrisburg, PA  17101 

 pulp@pautilitylawproject.org 
On behalf of CAUSE-PA 
 
Todd S. Stewart, Esq.  
Hawke McKeon & Sniscak LLP 
100 North Tenth Street 
Harrisburg, PA 17101 
tsstewart@hmslegal.com 
 
 

 
Excel Consulting 
Brian Kalcic 
225 S. Meramac Avenue 
Suite 720-T 
St. Louis, MO 63105 
Excel.consulting@sbcglobal.net 
On behalf of OSBA 
 
 
 

 
Post & Schell, P.C. 
Michael W. Gang 
Anthony D. Kanagy 
17 North Second Street 
12th Floor 
Harrisburg, PA 17101 
mgang@postschell.com 
akanagy@postschell.com 
On behalf of Duquesne Light Company 
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Keyes & Fox LLP 
Scott Dunbar 
1580 Lincoln Street 
Suite 1105 
Denver, CO 80203 
sdunbar@keyesfox.com 
On behalf of ChargePoint 
 
 
Thomas, Niesen & Thomas, LLC 
Charles E. Thomas, Jr.  
212 Locust Street, Ste 302 
Harrisburg, PA 17101 
cthomasjr@tntlawfirm.com 
On behalf of MAREC Action  
 
 
Fair Shake Environmental Legal Services 
Andrew J. Karas 
647 E. Market Street 
Akron, OH 44304 
akaras@fairshake-els.org 
On behalf of NRDC 
 
ChargePoint 
Matthew Deal 
254 East Hacienda Avenue 
Campbell, CA 95008 
Matthew.deal@chargepoint.com  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Date:  June 23, 2023 
 
 
 

 
StateWise Energy PA LLC & SFE Energy  
Gregory L. Peterson 
201 West Third Street 
Suite 205 
Jamestown, NY 14701-4907 
gpeterson@phillipslytle.com 
 
 
MAREC Action 
Bruce Burcat 
P.O. Box 385 
Camden, DE 19934 
Marec.org@gmail.com 
 
 
Natural Resources Defense Council  
Jackson Morris 
Kathy Harris 
1152 15th Street, Suite 300 
Washington, DC 20005 
jmorris@nrdc.org 
KHarris@nrdc.org 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Michael Zimmerman 
Duquesne Light Company 
411 Seventh Avenue, 15-7 
Pittsburgh, PA 15219 
Phone: 412-393-6268 
Email: mzimmerman@duqlight.com 
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